
To:             HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL. 
 
FROM:         Dave Maroney, Director of Economic Development and Planning. 
SUBJECT:   Land Reclamation Permit – CF Holdings. 
DATE:          June 25, 2013. 
 
BACKGROUND. 
 
The prime contractor for the Highway 52 project is searching for locations throughout the 
immediate area to excavate fill material for the project. According to the Contractor, 
material is available on property owned by CF Holdings which is located in the vicinity 
of the new interchange west of Highway 52 – map attached. According to Goodhue 
County records, CF Holdings owns two parcels in Cannon Falls (15.10 acres) and one 
parcel located in Cannon Falls Township (16.87 acres). The June 6, 2013 application 
submitted by G-Cubed (the “Applicant”) proposes to reclaim material from all three 
parcels subject to review by Goodhue County, Cannon Falls Township and the City of 
Cannon Falls. Section 152.400 (Procedure) of the Zoning Code allows land reclamation 
operations subject to compliance with various special requirements, performance 
standards and approval by the City Council. 
 
Staff and the City Engineer have reviewed the application materials. Section 152.401 
(A)(6) stipulates that the proposed final grade shall not adversely affect the surrounding 
land or development of the site on which the excavation is being conducted.  
 
On March 29, 2013 the Applicant was informed in writing that both Cannon Falls 
Township and Goodhue County must approve the proposed land reclamation permit. On 
June 5, 2013, Goodhue County provided conditional approval. At this point Cannon Falls 
Township has not informed Staff that the Town Board has approved the proposal.  
 
Information provided by the Applicant to Goodhue County and Cannon Falls Township 
represents that the parcel located outside of Cannon Falls will be excavated in accordance 
with the proposed plan, annexed and then developed with medium density residential 
land use. At present, CF Holdings has not made application for any zoning, public 
improvements or subdivision approvals for the property that they own within the City of 
Cannon Falls. The grading plan and residential land use proposal are not feasible because 
of the steep grades that would be left. The grades would make it unfeasible to develop the 
property in any reasonable manner. The two parcels owned by CF Holdings that are 
currently located within Cannon Falls are zoned Urban Reserve (UR) District.           
 
The application does not satisfy Section 152.401 (A)(6) of the Zoning Code and Staff 
recommends denial of the application because (a) in excess of 50-feet of existing 
elevation will be substantially modified creating a development area that would be 
difficult or unfeasible to develop and which  is incompatible with adjacent sites and uses 
because of the marked change in elevation; (b) as further development occurs in the 
immediate area it is unlikely that the grading of adjacent sites will be effectively blended 



and matched to the final grades represented by the proposed plan; and (c) to date, Cannon 
Falls Township has not approved the proposal.      
 
REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION. 
 
Staff requests denial of the application for the Land Reclamation Permit submitted by G-
Cubed for the properties owned by CF Holdings, PID’s 52.530.0010 and 52.530.0020.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





CITY OF CANNON FALLS 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2025 

 
DENYING LAND RECLAMATION PERMIT 

 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed information submitted relating to a request by CF 

Holdings LLC for a Land Reclamation Permit. Based upon project information presented and 
considered, the City Council hereby finds that:  

 
A. The property that the proposed Land Reclamation will occur on is described in the 

attached application; and 
 

 B. In considering Land Reclamation Permits, Section 152.401 (A) (6) of the Cannon 
Falls Zoning Ordinance directs consideration of the possible effects of a Land Reclamation Permit 
on surrounding land and future development of the site.  The City Council’s findings relating to this 
Section are: 

 
(1) Information provided by the Applicant to Goodhue County and Cannon 

Falls Township represents that the parcel located outside of Cannon Falls 
will be excavated in accordance with the proposed plan, annexed and then 
developed with medium density residential land use. At present, CF 
Holdings LLC has not made application for any zoning, public 
improvements or subdivision approvals for the property that they own 
within the City of Cannon Falls. 

 
(2) The grading plan and residential land use proposal are not feasible because 

of the steep grades that would be left. 
 
(3) The grades would make it unfeasible to develop the property in any 

reasonable manner. 
 
(4) The two parcels owned by CF Holdings that are currently located within 

Cannon Falls are zoned Urban Reserve (UR) District.           
 
(5) In excess of 50-feet of existing elevation will be substantially modified 

creating a development area that would be difficult or unfeasible to 
develop and which is incompatible with adjacent sites and uses because of 
the marked change in elevation.  

 
(6) As further development occurs in the immediate area it is unlikely that the 

grading of adjacent sites will be effectively blended and matched to the 
final grades represented by the proposed plan. 

 
(7) To date, Cannon Falls Township has not approved the proposal.      



 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CANNON 

FALLS, MINNESOTA that based upon the findings stated herein the Land Reclamation Permit 
requested by CF Holdings LLC is denied.   
 
Adopted this 2nd day of July, 2013. 
 
 

BY: ________________________________ 
       Lyman M. Robinson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: _________________________________ 

         Aaron S. Reeves, City Administrator 
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